

Uniform Command-Line Interface User's Guide

Sun Microsystems, Inc. www.sun.com

Part No. 820-2145-12 May 2008, Revision A Copyright © 2008 Sun Microsystems, Inc., 4150 Network Circle, Santa Clara, California 95054, U.S.A. All rights reserved.

THIS PRODUCT CONTAINS CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION AND TRADE SECRETS OF SUN MICROSYSTEMS, INC. USE, DISCLOSURE OR REPRODUCTION IS PROHIBITED WITHOUT THE PRIOR EXPRESS WRITTEN PERMISSION OF SUN MICROSYSTEMS, INC.

This distribution may include materials developed by third parties.

Sun, Sun Microsystems, the Sun logo, Netra, Solaris, Sun Ray, Sun StorEdge, Sun StorageTek, SunSolve, and the Butterfly logo are trademarks or registered trademarks of Sun Microsystems, Inc. in the U.S. and other countries.

All SPARC trademarks are used under license and are trademarks or registered trademarks of SPARC International, Inc. in the U.S. and other countries. Products bearing SPARC trademarks are based upon architecture developed by Sun Microsystems, Inc.

UNIX is a registered trademark in the U.S. and other countries, exclusively licensed through X/Open Company, Ltd.

This product is covered and controlled by U.S. Export Control laws and may be subject to the export or import laws in other countries. Nuclear, missile, chemical biological weapons or nuclear maritime end uses or end users, whether direct or indirect, are strictly prohibited. Export or reexport to countries subject to U.S. embargo or to entities identified on U.S. export exclusion lists, including, but not limited to, the denied persons and specially designated nationals lists is strictly prohibited.

Use of any spare or replacement CPUs is limited to repair or one-for-one replacement of CPUs in products exported in compliance with U.S. export laws. Use of CPUs as product upgrades unless authorized by the U.S. Government is strictly prohibited.

Copyright © 2008 Sun Microsystems, Inc., 4150 Network Circle, Santa Clara, California 95054, Etats-Unis. Tous droits réservés.

CE PRODUIT CONTIENT DES INFORMATIONS CONFIDENTIELLES ET DES SECRETS COMMERCIAUX DE SUN MICROSYSTEMS, INC. SON UTILISATION, SA DIVULGATION ET SA REPRODUCTION SONT INTERDITES SANS L AUTORISATION EXPRESSE, ECRITE ET PREALABLE DE SUN MICROSYSTEMS, INC.

Cette distribution peut comprendre des composants développés par des tierces parties.

Sun, Sun Microsystems, le logo Sun, Netra, Solaris, Sun Ray, Sun Storage Tek, SunSolve, et le logo Butterfly sont des marques de fabrique ou des marques déposées de Sun Microsystems, Inc. aux Etats-Unis et dans d'autres pays.

Toutes les marques SPARC sont utilisées sous licence et sont des marques de fabrique ou des marques déposées de SPARC International, Inc. aux Etats-Unis et dans d'autres pays. Les produits portant les marques SPARC sont basés sur une architecture développée par Sun Microsystems, Inc.

UNIX est une marque déposée aux Etats-Unis et dans d'autres pays et licenciée exlusivement par X/Open Company, Ltd.

Ce produit est soumis à la législation américaine sur le contrôle des exportations et peut être soumis à la règlementation en vigueur dans d'autres pays dans le domaine des exportations et importations. Les utilisations, ou utilisateurs finaux, pour des armes nucléaires, des missiles, des armes biologiques et chimiques ou du nucléaire maritime, directement ou indirectement, sont strictement interdites. Les exportations ou reexportations vers les pays sous embargo américain, ou vers des entités figurant sur les listes d'exclusion d'exportation américaines, y compris, mais de maniere non exhaustive, la liste de personnes qui font objet d'un ordre de ne pas participer, d'une façon directe ou indirecte, aux exportations des produits ou des services qui sont régis par la législation américaine sur le contrôle des exportations et la liste de ressortissants spécifiquement désignés, sont rigoureusement interdites. L'utilisation de pièces détachées ou d'unités centrales de remplacement est limitée aux réparations ou à l'échange standard d'unités centrales pour les produits exportés, conformément à la législation américaine en matière d'exportation. Sauf autorisation par les autorités des Etats-Unis, l'utilisation d'unités centrales pour procéder à des mises à jour de produits est rigoureusement interdite.



Contents

Preface xi

2.

Command-Line Interface Functionality 1
Installing the Command-Line Interface 2
About Installing the Command-Line Interface 2
▼ To Install on the Windows OS 3
▼ To Install on the Linux OS 3
▼ To Install on the Solaris OS 4
▼ To Install on VMware Technology 4
Starting the Command-Line Interface 5
▼ To Start arcconf 5
Using the Command-Line Interface 7
Understanding the Command-Line Interface 7
About the Command-Line Interface Modes 8
Identifying Return Codes 8
Using Event Log Files 9
Using Error Log Files 9

arcconf Commands 10

1. Getting Started With the Command-Line Interface 1

arcconf copyback 10

Description 10

Syntax 10

Options 11

Examples 11

arcconf create 11

Description 11

Syntax 11

Options 11

Examples 12

arcconf datascrub 13

Description 13

Syntax 13

Options 13

Examples 13

arcconf delete 14

Description 14

Syntax 14

Options 14

Examples 14

arcconf driverupdate 14

Description 14

Syntax 14

Options 15

Examples 15

arcconf getconfig 15

Description 15

Syntax 15

Options 15

Examples 16

arcconf getlogs 16

Description 16

Syntax 16

Options 16

Examples 16

arcconf getstatus 17

Description 17

Syntax 17

Options 17

Examples 17

arcconf getversion 17

Description 17

Syntax 17

Options 18

Examples 18

arcconf identify 18

Description 18

Syntax 18

Options 18

Examples 18

arcconf key 18

Description 18

Syntax 18

Options 19

Examples 19

arcconf modify 19

Description 19

Syntax 19

Options 19

Examples 20

arcconf rescan 20

Description 20

Syntax 20

Options 20

Examples 21

arcconf romupdate 21

Description 21

Syntax 21

Options 21

Examples 21

arcconf setalarm 21

Description 21

Syntax 22

Options 22

Examples 22

arcconf setcache 22

Description 22

Syntax 22

Options 22

Examples 23

arcconf setconfig 23

Description 23

Syntax 23

Options 23

Examples 24

arcconf setname 24

Description 24

Syntax 24

Options 24

Examples 24

arcconf setstate 24

Description 24

Syntax 24

Options 24

Examples 25

arcconf task 25

Description 25

Syntax 25

Options 25

Example: 26

Preface

This guide provides information about installing and using the command-line interface, arrconf. This command-line interface (CLI) can be used with RAID host bus adapters (HBAs), such as the Sun StorageTek SAS RAID HBAs.

Before You Read This Document

To use the information in this document, you must have installed and configured the HBAs with which you want to use the CLI. For hardware installation and configuration instructions for Sun StorageTek SAS RAID HBAs, see the installation documentation at:

http://docs.sun.com/app/docs/prod/stortek.raid.hba#hic

How This Document Is Organized

Chapter 1 describes how to install the command-line interface for your operating system.

Chapter 2 explains how to use the text-based command-line interface.

Using UNIX Commands

This document might not contain information about basic UNIX® commands and procedures such as shutting down the system, booting the system, and configuring devices. Refer to the following for this information:

- Software documentation that you received with your system
- SolarisTM Operating System documentation, which is at:

http://docs.sun.com

Shell Prompts

Shell	Prompt
C shell	machine-name%
C shell superuser	machine-name#
Bourne shell and Korn shell	\$
Bourne shell and Korn shell superuser	#

Typographic Conventions

Typeface	Meaning	Examples
AaBbCc123	The names of commands, files, and directories; on-screen computer output	Edit your.login file. Use 1s -a to list all files. % You have mail.
AaBbCc123	What you type, when contrasted with on-screen computer output	% su Password:
AaBbCc123	Book titles, new words or terms, words to be emphasized. Replace command-line variables with real names or values.	Read Chapter 6 in the <i>User's Guide</i> . These are called <i>class</i> options. You <i>must</i> be superuser to do this. To delete a file, type rm <i>filename</i> .

Note – Characters display differently depending on browser settings. If characters do not display correctly, change the character encoding in your browser to Unicode UTF-8.

Related Documentation

The following table lists the documentation for this product. The online documentation is available at:

http://docs.sun.com/app/docs/prod/stortek.raid.hba#hicl

Application	Title	Part Number	Format	Location
Hardware Installation	Sun StorageTek SAS RAID HBA Installation Guide Eight-Port, Internal HBA	820-1847-nn	PDF HTML	Documentation CD, Online
	Sun StorageTek SAS RAID HBA Installation Guide Eight-Port, External HBA	820-1260-nn	PDF HTML	Documentation CD, Online
RAID Management	Sun StorageTek RAID Manager Software User's Guide	820-1177-nn	PDF HTML	Documentation CD, Online
	Sun StorageTek RAID Manager Software Release Notes	820-2755-nn	PDF HTML	Documentation CD, Online

Documentation, Support, and Training

Sun Function	URL	
Documentation	http://www.sun.com/documentation/	
Support	http://www.sun.com/support/	
Training	http://www.sun.com/training/	

Third-Party Web Sites

Sun is not responsible for the availability of third-party web sites mentioned in this document. Sun does not endorse and is not responsible or liable for any content, advertising, products, or other materials that are available on or through such sites or resources. Sun will not be responsible or liable for any actual or alleged damage or loss caused by or in connection with the use of or reliance on any such content, goods, or services that are available on or through such sites or resources.

Sun Welcomes Your Comments

Sun is interested in improving its documentation and welcomes your comments and suggestions. You can submit your comments by going to:

http://www.sun.com/hwdocs/feedback

Please include the title and part number of your document with your feedback:

Uniform Command-Line Interface User's Guide, part number 820-2145-12

Getting Started With the Command-Line Interface

This chapter explains how to get started with the command-line interface (CLI), arcconf. The arcconf CLI can be used with RAID host bus adapters (HBAs).

This chapter contains the following sections:

- "Command-Line Interface Functionality" on page 1
- "Installing the Command-Line Interface" on page 2
- "Starting the Command-Line Interface" on page 5

Command-Line Interface Functionality

The arcconf CLI allows you to do the following:

- Create and delete logical drives.
- Display and modify a limited set of configuration settings.
- Copy configurations from one computer to another.
- Recover from a failed physical device and rebuild an affected logical drive.
- Flash new firmware and BIOS onto the controller.
- Enable the controller to check the removal and connection of any disk drives.
- Automatically update Windows drivers.
- Provide access to the status and event logs of a controller.
- Isolate problems and determine their causes.

Installing the Command-Line Interface

This section contains the following subsections:

- "About Installing the Command-Line Interface" on page 2
- "To Install on the Windows OS" on page 3
- "To Install on the Linux OS" on page 3
- "To Install on the Solaris OS" on page 4
- "To Install on VMware Technology" on page 4

About Installing the Command-Line Interface

To install the CLI, obtain the Sun StorageTek RAID Manager CD that is provided in the product ship kit or obtain the latest version of the software at: http://support.intel.com/support/go/sunraid.htm

The CLI is automatically installed in the same directory as the Sun StorageTek RAID Manager software and must remain there.

You can install the CLI on the following operating systems (OS) and technology:

- Windows OS
- Linux OS
- Solaris OS
- VMware technology (ESX Server)

For information about the specific OS and technology product versions that are supported, see the Sun StorageTek SAS RAID HBA installation documentation at: http://docs.sun.com/app/docs/prod/stortek.raid.hba#hicl

▼ To Install on the Windows OS

- 1. Start the computer.
- 2. After the Windows OS starts, insert the Sun StorageTek RAID Manager CD.
- 3. When the installation program starts, follow the on-screen instructions to install the CLI.

▼ To Install on the Linux OS

- 1. Start the computer.
- 2. After the Linux OS starts, insert and mount the Sun StorageTek RAID Manager CD.

```
Red Hat: mount /dev/cdrom /mnt/cdrom
SuSE: mount /dev/cdrom /media/cdrom
```

3. Change to the cdrom directory.

```
Red Hat: cd /mnt/cdrom/linux/manager
SuSE: cd /media/cdrom/linux/manager
```

4. Extract the RPM package and install it.

```
rpm: install ./StorMan*.rpm
```

5. Unmount the CD:

```
Red Hat: umount /mnt/cdrom
SuSE: umount /media/cdrom
```

▼ To Install on the Solaris OS

1. Insert the Sun StorageTek RAID Manager CD.

The CD mounts automatically. (If it does not, manually mount the CD using a command similar to the one shown in this step. Refer to your operating system documentation for detailed instructions.)

mount -F hsfs -o ro/dev/dsk/c1t0d0s2/mnt

2. Install the Sun StorageTek RAID Manager software.

pkgadd -d/mount-point/solaris/manager/StorMan.pkg

3. Follow the on-screen instructions to complete the installation.

Eject or unmount the CD. Refer to your operating system documentation for detailed instructions.

▼ To Install on VMware Technology

1. Insert and then mount the Sun StorageTek RAID Manager CD.

mount -r /dev/cdrom /mnt/cdrom

2. Change to the cdrom directory.

cd /mnt/cdrom/linux/manager

3. Extract the Linux Sun StorageTek RAID Manager RPM package and install it.

rpm --install ./StorMan*.rpm

Note – Ignore the note that says "Application can be started by typing /usr/StorMan/StorMan.sh". The console has no graphical capability.

Starting the Command-Line Interface

▼ To Start arcconf

Type the appropriate command for your operating system/technology:

Windows: c:\install-directory\arcconf.exe
Linux: /usr/install-directory/arcconf
Solaris: /usr/StorMan/arcconf
VMware: /usr/install-directory/arcconf

Replace *install-directory* with the directory where the CLI is installed.

To see a list of available commands, type **arcconf** at the prompt. The CLI command functions are detailed in the next chapter.

Using the Command-Line Interface

This chapter explains how to use the text-based command-line interface that provides the same functions as the Sun StorageTek RAID Manager graphical user interface (GUI) in environments where a GUI is not available.

This chapter provides a description, syntax, and examples for each CLI command. Text that you enter literally is shown in **bold**. Optional parameters are shown enclosed in [square brackets]. Variables for which you must substitute values are shown in *italics*. When you may select between multiple parameters, options are separated by a bar (|).

This chapter contains the following sections:

- "Understanding the Command-Line Interface" on page 7
- "arcconf Commands" on page 10

Understanding the Command-Line Interface

This section contains the following subsections:

- "About the Command-Line Interface Modes" on page 8
- "Identifying Return Codes" on page 8
- "Using Event Log Files" on page 9
- "Using Error Log Files" on page 9

About the Command-Line Interface Modes

The command-line interface is used interactively or in batch mode. With interactive mode, enter commands at the prompt. In batch mode, create scripts and run the script in the appropriate shell. For example:

TABLE 2-1 Batch Files and Scripts

Environment	Batch File	Run Script
Windows	.bat	CMD.EXE
Linux/UNIX	.sh	sh / bash

In either mode, if the command fails, you immediately see an error message for the command that failed. Other script messages that you may encounter indicate the command completed successfully, or the command was aborted.

To access the online help for a specific command, type **arcconf**, then press Enter.

Identifying Return Codes

The return values are as follows:

0x00: SUCCESS

0x01: FAILURE

The requested command failed

0x02: ABORT

The command was aborted because parameters failed validation

0x03: INVALID_ARGUMENTS

The arguments are incorrect. (Displays COMMAND help)

0x04: UNSUPPORTED

The command is unsupported

0x06: INVALID_ADAPTER

The adapter specified does not exist (special case for INVALID_ARGUMENTS)

Using Event Log Files

The command-line interface event log shows the results of a command in the form of the following:

- Status success/failure/aborted/invalid arguments/unsupported/invalid adapter
- Return code -0x00/0x01/0x02/0x03/0x04/0x06

Additionally, when using the romupdate or driverupdate commands, the event log will display the old and new version of the firmware or driver being updated.

This feature allows you to save logs documenting all commands. The following is an example of saving a firmware update event log.

arcconf romupdate 1 as4805 noprompt eventlog romupdate_1.log
errorlog update_err.log

Using Error Log Files

The error log keeps an inventory of all relevant information from an event failure. The error log file also contains return codes (for details see "Identifying Return Codes" on page 8) that will help diagnose why a command failed.

When saving an event log, you can specify the log name and path by using the eventlog optional parameter, type <code>name-of-CLI</code> eventlog <code>path</code>, then press Enter.

This feature allows you to save logs documenting all event failures. The following is an example of saving a driver update error log.

arcconf driverupdate_1 c:\sdrivers noprompt eventlog
driverupdate_1.log errorlog update_err.log

arcconf Commands

This section provides information on the arcconf commands. The section contains the following subsections:

- "arcconf copyback" on page 10
- "arcconf create" on page 11
- "arcconf datascrub" on page 13
- "arcconf delete" on page 14
- "arcconf driverupdate" on page 14
- "arcconf getconfig" on page 15
- "arcconf getlogs" on page 16
- "arcconf getstatus" on page 17
- "arcconf getversion" on page 17
- "arcconf identify" on page 18
- "arcconf key" on page 18
- "arcconf modify" on page 19
- "arcconf rescan" on page 20
- "arcconf romupdate" on page 21
- "arcconf setalarm" on page 21
- "arcconf setcache" on page 22
- "arcconf setconfig" on page 23
- "arcconf setname" on page 24
- "arcconf setstate" on page 24
- "arcconf task" on page 25

arcconf copyback

Description

Enables or disables the copyback feature, which attempts to keep drives in the original slot order after rebuilds.

Syntax

arcconf copyback controller-number on | off

Options

■ controller-number

The controller number

■ on off

Enables or disables the copyback feature.

Examples

```
arcconf copyback 1 on
```

arcconf create

Description

Creates a new logical drive. You must provide the channel and device ID of the physical devices.

On redundant logical drives, arcconf performs auto synchronization.

Syntax

```
arcconf create controller-number logicaldrive [stripesize size] [legs
number] [name name] [priority low | medium | high] [Method build
| clear | quick] [ron | roff] [wt | tb | wbb]] [size | max]
[RAID-number] [channel-number channel-ID-number] [noprompt]
```

arcconf create controller-number logicaldrive rvolume volume [logicaldrive-number] [logical-drive-number] [noprompt]

Options

■ controller-number

The controller number

■ logicaldrive

A logical drive will be created

■ stripesize size

Optional parameter to specifying a stripe size. The size can be 16, 32, 64, 128, 256, 512 and 1024 KB. The default is 256 KB.

■ legs number

Optional parameter to specify the number of legs in the multi-layer array. Value is an integer for RAID 0x. For RAID 50/60—2 - 16 legs, 3 - 16 drives/leg, 48 drives max

■ name name

Optional parameter to specify the alias name of a logical device that is displayed in the utilities. Value is a string of up to 16 characters.

■ priority low|medium|high

Initialization priority for logical drive to be created.

■ method build|clear|quick

Initialization method for the logical drive.

■ ron|roff

Turn on or off logical drive read cache

■ wt |wb |wbb

wt / wb: disable or enable logical drive write cache write-through. wbb: enable logical drive write cache write-back enabled when protected by a battery

■ size | max

The size of the logical drive in megabytes. Use max to set size to available space.

■ RAID-number

RAID level for the new logical drive. 0, 1, 1E, 10, 5, 5EE, 50, 6, 60, and volume are supported.

■ channel-number ID-number

The space-delimited channel number and device number pairs for each device to add to the logical drive.

■ rvolume volume

The RAID level for a RAID volume logical drive.

■ logical-drive-number logical-drive-number

Logical drive numbers for two or more logical drives to be concatenated into the RAID volume. At least two must be used.

■ noprompt

Used mostly for the purpose of scripting setup, this parameter overrides all user confirmations.

Examples

arcconf create 1 logicaldrive STRIPESIZE 64 MAX 0 1 0 1 1 1 2 noprompt

arcconf datascrub

Description

Sets the background consistency check modes of the controller.

Syntax

arcconf datascrub controller-number on | off | period days [noprompt]

Options

■ controller-number

The controller number

■ on|off|period days

on turns the background consistency check on.

off turns the background consistency check off.

period *days* the number of days to complete a background consistency check. period automatically turns on the background consistency check days indicates a minimum of 10 days (quick) and a maximum of 365 days (slow)

■ noprompt

Used mostly for the purpose of scripting setup, this parameter overrides all user confirmations.

Examples

arcconf datascrub 1 period 10

arcconf delete

Description

Deletes a logical drive. All data stored on the logical drive will be lost. Spanned drives cannot be deleted with this function.

Syntax

arcconf delete controller-number logicaldrive logical-drive-number-to-delete
| all logical-drive-number logical-drive-number [noprompt]

arcconf delete controller-number logicaldrive all [noprompt]

Options

■ controller-number

The controller number

■ logical-drive-number-to-delete | **all**

The number of the logical drive to be deleted. **all** deletes all logical drives

■ logical-drive-number logical-drive-number

Logical drive numbers for two or more logical drives.

■ noprompt

Used mostly for the purpose of scripting setup, this parameter overrides all user confirmations.

Examples

```
arcconf delete 1 logicaldrive 1 2 3
arcconf delete 1 logicaldrive all
```

arcconf driverupdate

Description

Updates Windows device drivers. When given a directory name, it will attempt to update a driver to the version found in the given directory.

Note – This command is available only on Windows systems.

Syntax

arcconf driverupdate directory-path

Options

■ directory-path

The directory path containing the driver that you want to update.

Examples

arcconf driverupdate C:\windowsall

arcconf getconfig

Description

Lists information about the controllers, logical drives, and physical devices. This information can include (but is not limited to) the following items:

- Controller type
- BIOS, boot block, device driver, and firmware versions
- Logical drive status, RAID level, and size
- Physical device type, device ID, presence of PFA
- Physical device state
- Enclosure information: fan, power supply, and temperature status

Syntax

arcconf getconfig controller-number [ad | ld | pd | al]

Options

■ controller-number

The controller number

■ ad

Adapter information only

■ 1d

Logical drive information only

■ pd

Physical device information only

■ al

All information

Examples

arcconf getconfig 1 ad

arcconf getlogs

Description

Obtains controller log information. Provides access to the status and event logs of a controller.

Syntax

arcconf getlogs controller-number device | dead | event [clear |
tabular]

Options

■ controller-number

The controller number

■ device

Retrieve a log of any device errors the controller has encountered

■ dead

Retrieve a log that records any occurrences of defunct devices

event

Retrieve a log of special events that may have occurred (for example, rebuilds, LDMs, and so on)

■ clear

Optional, clears the specified controller log

■ tabular

Optional, displays logs in a table format

Examples

```
arcconf getlogs 1 device arcconf getlogs 1 device tabular
```

arcconf getstatus

Description

The getstatus function displays the status of any background command that is currently running. Including information about the most recent rebuild, synchronization, logical-drive migration, and compaction/expansion. The information includes the type of operation, status, logical drive number, logical drive size, and percentage of the operation completed.

Note — getstatus reports currently active operations for both arcconf commands and commands issued from the Sun StorageTek RAID Manager software. It reports verify, clear, initialize, and secure erase operations on physical devices. It only reports active operations. It does not display information if the operation is completed.

Syntax

arcconf getstatus controller-number

Options

controller-numberThe controller number

Examples

arcconf getstatus 1

arcconf getversion

Description

Lists version information for all controllers or a specific controller's software components, including information about the BIOS, driver, firmware currently running, and firmware that will run after a reboot.

Note – The firmware version that will run after a reboot is called the "staged" firmware.

Syntax 5 4 1

arcconf getversion controller-number

Options

■ controller-number

The controller number. If no controller number is specified, information for all controllers is retrieved.

Examples

```
arcconf getversion
```

arcconf identify

Description

Identifies a physical or logical device by blinking its LEDs

Syntax

```
arcconf identify controller-number logicaldrive logical-drive-number arcconf identify controller-number device channel-number ID-number
```

Options

■ controller-number

The controller number

■ logicaldrive logical-drive-number

The number of the logical drive to be identified

■ **device** channel-number ID-number

The channel and ID number for the device to be identified

Examples

```
arcconf identify 1 device 0 0 arcconf identify 1 all
```

arcconf key

Description

Loads a feature key onto a Sun controller

Syntax

arcconf key controller-number set key-number

Options

■ controller-number

The controller number

■ **set** key-number

type the key number provided by Sun

Examples

```
arcconf key 1 set ABCD EFGH IJKL MNOP QRST UVWX
```

arcconf modify

Description

Morphs a logical device from one raid level to another (RAID Level Migration). Expands a logical device from original to one with larger capacity (Online Capacity Expansion). Can be used to make mirrored sets.

Syntax

arcconf modify controller-number from logical-drive-number to [stripe-size |
init-priority | legs | [size | max] RAID-number | channel-number IDnumber[channel-number ID-number]] [noprompt]

Options

■ controller#

The controller number

■ from

The logical drive to be modified

■ logical-drive-number

The logical drive number

■ to

The modifications

■ stripe-size

The stripe size in KB. Options are 16, 32, 64, 128, 256, 512, and 1024. the default is 256 KB.

■ init-priority

The priority level of the modification. Options are low, med, and high.

■ legs

The number of subarrays for a RAID level-50 or RAID level 60 array. Possible values are 2-16 legs and 3-16 drives/leg (to 48 drives maximum).

■ size | max

Desired size in MB or max to use all available space on the disk

■ RAID-number

The RAID level for the logical drive 0, 1, 5, 5EE, or 10.

Note – The channel number and ID number parameters is the list of devices that will contain the target modification object.

■ channel-number

The channel number for the device

■ ID-number

The device_ID (device number) for the device

Note – Channel and device_ID are repeatable parameters.

■ noprompt

Used mostly for the purpose of scripting setup, this parameter overrides all user confirmations.

Examples

arcconf modify 1 from 1 to 262144 1 0 0 0 1

arcconf rescan

Description

Enables the controller to check for the removal of any disk drives in the ready state and to check for the connection of any new disk drives to the controller. The command returns when the rescan is complete.

Syntax

arcconf rescan controller-number

Options

■ controller-number

The controller number

Examples

arcconf rescan 1

arcconf romupdate

Description

Allows new firmware and BIOS to be flashed to the controller. A reboot is required for the new firmware to take effect.

Note – This function is only supported in Windows and Linux. Be sure to copy the *.UFI update files from the CD and not from the BIOS / firmware update diskettes.

Syntax

arcconf romupdate controller-number basename

Options

■ controller-number

The controller number

■ basename

The name of the ROM image basename or the fully qualified name if you have a set of controller ROM images.

Note – All UFI files must be in the same directory prior to invoking arcconf. If you are copying UFI files from floppy images, be sure to check all images.

Examples

```
arcconf romupdate 1 AC2200 arcconf romupdate 1 AC220001.UFI
```

arcconf setalarm

Description

Sets the state of the controller audible alarm, if present.

Syntax

arcconf setalarm controller-number on | off | silence | test

Options

■ controller-number

The controller number

■ on

Enables the alarm

■ off

Disables the alarm

■ silence

Quiets the currently sounding alarm

■ test

Triggers the alarm

Examples

```
arcconf setalarm 1 test
arcconf setalarm 1 silence
```

arcconf setcache

Description

Changes a logical drive's cache mode.

Syntax

```
arcconf setcache controller-number logicaldrive logical-drive-number [ron
| rof] [wt | tb | wbb] [noprompt]

arcconf setcache controller-number device channel-number ID-number [ron
| roff] [wt | tb | wbb] [noprompt]
```

Options

■ controller-number

The controller number

■ logicaldrive logical-drive-number

The number of the logical drive whose cache will be altered

■ ron roff

Turn on or off logical drive read cache

■ wt | wb | wbb

wt / wb: disable or enable logical drive write cache write-through. wbb: enable logical drive write cache write-back enabled when protected by a battery

■ **device** channel-number ID-number

The channel number and device number for the device

■ noprompt

Used mostly for the purpose of scripting setup, this parameter overrides all user confirmations.

Examples

```
arcconf setcache logicaldrive 1 ron arcconf setcache device 0 0 wb
```

arcconf setconfig

Description

Resets the controller's configuration. Logical drives are deleted, hard disks are reset to the READY state.

Syntax

arcconf setconfig controller-number default [noprompt]

Options

■ controller-number

The controller number

■ default

Restores the controller's default configuration

■ noprompt

Used mostly for the purpose of scripting setup, this parameter overrides all user confirmations.

Examples

arcconf setconfig 1 default

arcconf setname

Description

Renames a logical drive.

Syntax

arcconf setname controller-number logicaldrive logical-drive-number new-name

Options

■ controller-number

The controller number

■ logicaldrive logical-drive-number

The number of the logical drive to be renamed

■ new-name

The new name of the logical drive

Examples

```
arcconf setname 1 logicaldrive 1 BACKUP_A
```

arcconf setstate

Description

Changes the state of a physical device from its current state to the designated state (hot-spare).

Syntax

arcconf setstate controller-number device channel-number ID-number devicenumber hsp | rdy | ddd logicaldrive logical-drive-number [logical-drivenumber]

Options

■ controller-number

The controller number

■ **device** channel-number ID-number

The channel and ID number for the device

device-number

The device number for the device

■ hsp

Create a hot-spare from a ready drive

■ rdy

Remove a hot-spare designation

ddd

Force a drive offline

■ logicaldrive logical-drive-number

Logical drive number(s) used to create an assigned hot-spare

Examples

```
arcconf setstate 1 device 0 0 hsp logicaldrive 1 2 3 arcconf setstate 1 device 0 0 rdy logicaldrive 2
```

arcconf task

Description

Performs a task on a logical drive.

Syntax

```
arcconf task start | stop controller-number logicaldrive logical-drive-
number [verify_fix | verify | clear] [noprompt]
```

arcconf task start | stop controller-number device channel-number IDnumber[verify_fix | verify | clear | initialize | secureerase]
[noprompt]

Options

■ controller-number

The controller number

■ logicaldrive logical-drive-number

The number of the logical drive on which the task is to be performed

■ **device** channel-number ID-number

The channel and ID number on which the task is to be performed

verify_fix

Verifies the disk media and repairs the disk if bad data is found

■ verify

Verifies the disk media

■ clear

Removes all data from the drive

■ initialize

Returns a drive to the READY state (erases the metadata)

■ secureerase

Removes all data from the drive in a secure fashion to prevent possible recovery of the erased data

■ noprompt

Used mostly for the purpose of scripting setup, this parameter overrides all user confirmations.

Example:

arcconf task start 1 logicaldrive 1 verify
arcconf task start 1 device 0 0 initialize